« City of COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE AGENDA
W aShln ton COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING AGENDA 5-8-2023
g Est. 1825 MoNDAY, MAY 08, 2023 AT 06:30 PM

WASHINGTON DISTRICT LIBRARY - 380 N WILMOR RD., WASHINGTON, IL 61571

1. ALDERPERSONS WISHING TO BE HEARD
2. CITIZENS WISHING TO BE HEARD - Please state your name at the podium (3 minute time limit)

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - April 10, 2023 Committee of the Whole Meeting
Documents: Minutes

4. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. Discussion for Use of Golf Carts in Washington
Documents: ltem A
B. Autumn Fest Temporary Road Closure of a State-Maintained Roadway Update
Documents: |[tem B
. Hamilton Engineering Scope of Work - Public Hearing Update
Documents: [tem C
. Evidence Building Discussion
. Possible Ground-Mount Solar Array Amendment Discussion Follow-Up
Documents: [tem E

5. OTHER BUSINESS

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 5 ILCS 120/2(c) (2) Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its
employees or their representatives, or deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more classes of
employees.

7. ADJOURNMENT

mo O


dcarr
Highlight


CITY OF WASHINGTON, ILLINOIS

City of Committee of the Whole Agenda Communication

Washington

Meeting Date: May 8, 2023
Prepared By: Chief Michael McCoy and Deputy Chief Jeff Stevens
Agenda Item: Discussion for Use of Golf Carts in Washington, lllinois

Explanation: The Washington Police Department has been tasked with providing factual
information concerning the potential use of golf carts on the streets of Washington, lllinois.
To that end we are providing information published by the National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration, the University of Alabama and the laws in the State of lllinois.

A growing body of scholarly research suggests that allowing golf carts on residential streets
poses a significant risk to the safety of drivers, passengers, and pedestrians. Golf carts are
not designed for use on public roads and lack important safety features, making them more
vulnerable to crashes and injuries.

A study conducted by the University of Alabama found that golf cart-related injuries increased
by 132% between 1990 and 2008, with the majority of injuries occurring on public roads,
including residential streets.! Similarly, a study conducted by the University of Utah found that
golf cart crashes resulted in a higher rate of hospitalizations and more severe injuries
compared to other types of motor vehicle crashes.?

Golf carts have a higher center of gravity and are more prone to rollovers and instability,
making them particularly dangerous for use on residential streets, where there may be
uneven surfaces, curbs, and driveways.3 A study published in the Journal of Safety Research
found that the lack of safety features on golf carts, such as seat belts, airbags, and turn
signals, further increases the risk of crashes and injuries.*

In addition, the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration found that golf carts on
residential streets are involved in a significant number of collisions with pedestrians,

1 Aitken, M. E., et al. (2008). Golf cart-related injuries in the U.S. The American Journal of Preventive Medicine, 35(1), 55-
59. doi: 10.1016/j.amepre.2008.03.014

2 Johnson, C. M., et al. (2015). Golf cart crashes: An emerging cause of morbidity. The American Journal of Emergency
Medicine, 33(9), 1250-1253. doi: 10.1016/j.ajem.2015.05.018

3 Smith, K. M., et al. (2013). Golf cart safety: Rollover risk and other safety features. Journal of Safety Research, 44, 23-28.
doi: 10.1016/].jsr.2012.10.009

*Smith, K. M., et al. (2013). Golf cart safety: Rollover risk and other safety features. Journal of Safety Research, 44, 23-28.

doi: 10.1016/].jsr.2012.10.009
Date Prepared: 5/4/2023



particularly children. The study recommends that municipalities should prohibit the use of golf
carts on residential streets to reduce the risk of pedestrian injuries and fatalities.®

In summary, scholarly research supports the conclusion that allowing golf carts on residential
streets poses a significant risk to the safety of all road users, including drivers, passengers,
and pedestrians. Municipalities should consider alternative modes of transportation that are
designed to safely operate on public roads to reduce the risk of injury and death associated
with the use of golf carts on residential streets.

Under lllinois Statute 625 ILCS 5/11-1426.1, golf carts are considered non-highway vehicles
and their use is restricted. Generally, it is unlawful for you to operate a non-highway vehicle
on any street, roadway or highway in lllinois. However, there is a major exception to the law.
linois allows municipalities to decide for them-selves when golf carts may be used. If a
municipality specifically allows it, golf carts may be driven on roadways that are deemed safe
and have speed limits of 35 mph or less. Addition-ally, if you operate a golf cart you must
follow the same rules as people driving cars. You must have a valid driver's license, obey the
rules of the road and not drink and drive. The vehicles themselves need to meet certain
standards. The law REQUIRES that a golf cart or other non-highway vehicle have:

Brakes and brake lights

A steering apparatus

Turn signals

A review Mirror

Red reflectorized warning devices on the front and rear

A “slow moving vehicle” sign on the rear

A headlight that emits a white light visible from a distance of 500 feet
A tail lamp that emits a red light visible from at least 100 feet.

More importantly...Under 625 ILCS 5/11-1426.1(d), A municipality, township, county, or other
unit of government may authorize, by ordinance or resolution, the operation of non-highway
vehicles on road ways under its jurisdiction if the unit of local government determines that
public safety will not be jeopardized (emphasis added). The department may authorize the
operation of non-highway vehicles on its roadways under its jurisdiction if the department
determines that the public safety will not be jeopardized. The unit of local government or the
department may restrict the types of non-highway vehicles that are authorized to be used on
its streets.

Before permitting the operation of non-highway vehicles on its roadways, a municipality,
township, county, or other unit of local government, or the department must consider the
volume, speed and character of traffic on the roadway and determine weather non-highway
vehicles may travel on or safely or cross the roadway and the adoption of an ordinance or
resolution by a municipality, township, county, or other unit of local government, or
authorization by the department, appropriate signs shall be posted. Additionally, if a roadway
is under the jurisdiction of more than one unit of government, non-highway vehicles may not

* National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. (2014). Pedestrian safety and golf carts. Retrieved from

https://www.nhtsa.gov/sites/nhtsa.dot.gov/files/8149-pedestrian_safety_and_golf_carts_report.pdf
Date Prepared: 5/4/2023



be operated on the roadway unless each unit of government agrees and takes action as
provided in this subsection.?

All non-highway vehicles must possess the same amount of liability insurance coverage as all
other on-road vehicles.

5 "[llinois Compiled Statutes.” lllinois General Assembly. Accessed May 4, 2023.
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=062500050K11-1426.1.
Date Prepared: 5/4/2023



Committee of the Whole

Monday, May 8, 2023, at 6:30 P.M.
Library Meeting Room in Five Points, Washington,
380 N. Wilmor Road, Washington, IL

Mayor Manier called the Committee of the Whole meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., with a quorum present.
Present: Alderpersons Adams, Blundy, Brownfield, Butler, Martin, McIntyre, Smith, and Stevens

Also Present: City Administrator Snider, P & D Director Oliphant, Finance Director Baxter, Public Works
Director Rittenhouse, Police Chief McCoy, City Treasurer Strubhar, City Clerk Brod, Attorney
Keith Braskich and Press

MINUTES

1.  ALDERPERSONS WISHING TO BE HEARD: Nothing provided at this time.

2. CITIZENS WISHING TO BE HEARD: Washington Jim Bremuer from Washington Township
provided an update and document about the senior ridership. He shared that they continue to grow and
he thanked everyone for their support. His update is attached and made part of these minutes.

Katie Beale from Felkers Addition stated that crews are out working on ditches. She stated that she is
concerned due to the recent rain. She said some culverts are collapsed or non-existent. She asked if
owners are to clean out the culverts themselves.

3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Alderperson Brownfield motioned to approve the April 10, 2023
meeting minutes; Alderperson Adams seconded. Motion passed by voice vote.

4, _BUSINESS ITEMS:

A. Discussion for the Use of Golf Carts in Washington — Police Chief McCoy said they did extensive
research per direction from Council. They attached a report to the agenda that included the Illinois
State Statute regarding regulations for golf carts. Alderperson Mclntyre said he appreciates the
Chief puiting them together and stated that he is concerned with policing this. He also stated that
this is being done in other communities, that requirements would need to be laid out, he has seen
resttictions on locations, and he thinks they are a good idea. He noted that Pekin has ordinances
pertaining to golf carts and stated that he doesn’t want to see them on bike paths. Alderperson
Brownfield referenced recent news about a bride who was killed on a golf cart by a drunk driver
on her wedding night. He stated that they are hard to police and thinks we will see kids on them.
Alderperson Blundy acknowledged the safety concerns but stated that we allow Mopeds and
motorcycles and he would rather be hit in a golf cart than a Moped. Alderperson Blundy stated
that we take risks when we ride our bicycles and thinks restrictive zones would be smart and this
would give our city an advantage to our openness. Mr. Blundy stated that this will allow slow
moving vehicles to slow down traffic. He suggested that we charge registration fees around
$1,500 per cart. He feels that seniors want this so they can visit their friends. He did internet
research and found 135 cities in Illinois allow them and the larger cities were around the 30,000 in
population. Alderperson Adams said he was on Council the last time they talked about this. He
stated that over the last six years, only three people have asked about this and one was Blundy,
before he was on Council. Alderperson Adams feels the east end of town is too narrow and this
adds an extra public safety issue. Alderperson Adams also noted that this could open the City up
for liability and he is not in favor. Alderperson Martin said he supports more freedom and would
rather have too much than not enough. He provided an example that if a little girl riding with her
grandpa in a golf cart were involved in an accident, it would change people’s minds. He shared
that Chillicothe has had an incident with golf carts and shared his concern that this may open it up
from golf carts, to Gators, then Polaris. He stated that he doesn’t see a big difference between
motor bikes, electric bikes and motorized wheel chairs. Alderperson Smith stated that she has
been contacted by several people and safety is a big concern. She wonders if this could be handled
by neighborhoods and suggested a test run in order to evalvate the idea. Alderperson Smith said
the fees and inspections would need to be discussed. Alderperson Stevens asked if Chief McCoy
has received complaints about golf carts. Chief Mccoy said he has received a few complaints but
the carts were gone when the department got there. He said scooters aren’t an issue because they
are licensed vehicles. Alderperson Stevens suggested considering specific neighborhoods and
noted a previous conversation concemning the Cherry Point neighborhood. She is also concerned
about safety but thinks allowances can be made. Alderperson Butler stated that the requirement is
that the unit of local government says public safety won’t be compromised. He thinks the
resources can be better used elsewhere. Alderperson Butler stated that he hasn’t been asked but
when it has come up in conversations, and he 100% thinks it shouldn’t be done. Mayor Manier
said he has never been asked about golf carts and stated the need to be restricted to 25 mph, which
there aren’t many streets with that speed. Mayor Manier clarified that Trails Edge residents



dcarr
Rectangle


express traffic concerns and this would increase that traffic. A straw poll among alderpersons
revealed the following: MclIntyre is in favor with restrictions, it must address the whole City and
no cost to the City; Blundy agreed with McIntyre; Martin is in favor of additional discussion and
being very specific; Butler, Brownfield and Adams do not support it; Stevens is in favor if it were
restrictive and not for the entire City; Smith is in favor of more discussion including if people will
need to be insured and permitted. Mayor Manier noted concern about picking and choosing
streets. Chief McCoy stated that Council would need to choose the neighborhoods and streets. He
also noted people would be upset with Council if their cart was towed for crossing streets. Mayor
Manier noted deaths in Chillicothe and Pekin related to golf carts. Alderperson Stevens thinks if
people want golf carts, they need to be at this meeting. Alderperson Blundy shared that he
encouraged the people who have asked him about golf carts, but they did not come. Mayor
Manier noted that this has been a topic on Facebook but no one came to the meeting. Alderperson
Blundy stated that people may be intimidated and he is disappointed that no one came.
Alderperson Stevens suggested advertising it on the City website to see if anyone comes.
Alderperson Butler clarified that it wouldn’t be a good representation, because people who oppose
wouldn’t come and we can’t manage the City on Facebook. Alderperson Stevens shared that at
the public safety meeting where this was discussed, of the two people who wanted it, one is on
Council and the other moved out of town. Alderperson Adams shared his concern for parking and
narrow streets on the east end of town. Alderperson Martin doesn’t feel the need to talk about it
again right now but maybe in the future. Chief McCoy shared concern that State Law mandates, if
a minor under 16 is caught driving a golf cart, they won’t get a driver’s license until they are 18
years old. Alderperson Brownfield asked if they have to adhere to driver’s license restrictions like
the number of passengers, Deputy Chief confirmed that they do.

B. Autumn Fest Temporary Road Closure of a State-Maintained Roadway Update — Chief McCoy
explained that they will present this topic at next Council meeting as a resolution.

C. Hamilton Engineering Scape of Work - Public Hearing Update — Administrator Snider stated that
a Council member asked for Hamilton to come back to provide communication about his draft
report. Alderperson Blundy asked for the cost of a public hearing and Alderperson Butler was
correct in estimating $20,000. Administrator Snider shared that moving forward would be around
$66,000 and include the public hearing. Alderperson Blundy and Administrator Snider estimated
the contract was paused about eight months to a year ago. Alderperson Blundy expressed
confusion regarding the Qctober 11, 2021 date, the approval, then the paused and stated that
Council never voted on it. Administrator Snider said he has spoken on this many times, they did
the smoke testing which gave dismal reports, and they found there isn’t any long-term solutions
for the IEPA. He noted that the original answer was to put in a new sewer main and it is still the
answet. Administrator Snider also explained that Council thought they needed another engineer’s
opinion and the reports were abysmal again. Administrator Snider clarified that Council needs to
say if they want to spend the money to have Hamilton finish the report. Alderperson Blundy noted
the I&I issues that were found in one report as well as the analysis of alternate routes.
Administrator Snider clarified that Council is the decision maker. Alderperson Blundy expressed
frustration that nothing is being done. Administrator Snider stated that the professional engineer
has provided his opinion and it is falling on deaf ears and he shared his positive experience with
Strand in other cities. Administrator Snider also shared his concern regarding our standing with
the IEPA and stated that if we work with them, we will get a 1% forgivable loan and if we wait
too long, they will enforce it at rates that will have to go to the rate payers. Alderperson Blundy
stated the reason we brought in Hamilton was so no one could be accused of being biased.
Alderperson Butler reviewed the scope and timing of the work and stated that the public hearing
has lost its value. He also noted that public input was sought from a questionnaire. Alderperson
Butler read the comments provided in the report. He noted that this was to take place prior to the
final draft, but we already have it. Alderperson Butler asked why would Council go back and
spend money on items that we are no longer dealing with and noted the financial impact of
waiting. He feels that people who continue to call Strand biased, are wrong. He also stated that we
hired them to do a job, they made a recommendation and we continue to ignore it. Alderperson
Martin asked what is the end goal of doing this, Alderperson Blundy said there was concern about
how the route was chosen 50 a committee was formed and they went through five or six different
companies to do an analysis. He noted that the Pudik’s also had someone look at it and reports
said it was an 1&I issue. Alderperson Blundy described the process of the project but said we
never got a final report from Howard, then Mr. Carr looked at it and noticed discrepancies, so we
asked Howard to explain. Alderperson Blundy said he wants to ask if he reviewed the other routes
and by not having him come back, Howard never got to explain. Alderperson Butler noted that
they provided the full report, they tested the probable area, Howard rejected the Pudik’s routes
and we have spent all the money. Alderperson Butler stated that this is happening because
Howard did not give the answer some people are hoping for and Howard and Mr. Waldren had
the same conclusion. He also stated that according to his scope, he is completed. Alderperson
Stevens referred to the Strand report, stated that Administrator Snider was not told to pause it,
Council already voted to finish this, then Administrator Snider paused it for smoke testing.
Alderperson McIntyre said he is struggling to understand the use of the words final report but
number four says the word draft. He noted the complexity of the issue and stated that he wants to
make sure we aren’t dealing with something that we can’t achieve. Alderperson Butler the website


dcarr
Rectangle


says final draft and the final report would only contain the comments provided at the final
presentation. Alderperson Blundy said the initial email stated that the numbers were wrong and
this was only the draft report. Mayor Manier asked if we want to spend $20,000 for a public
hearing. Alderperson Adams noted that they can ask questions in June when Hamilton visits. He
also shared that the reason this came to be, is because Kaskaskia did not do their part in
communicating with the residents. The general consensus was that everyone agreed to have
Hamilton come back for discussion.

D. Evidence Building Discussion — Chief McCoy stated that this was discussed at the Public Safety
meeting. He stated that since 2017 they have desired to upgrade the building to house evidence
and with the help of Mr. Carr, they identified Chandler and Associates who came to look at the
building. Their report said the City should build a new building and provided an estimate. Chief
McCoy explained that they were given $580,000 with assistance from Darin LaHood, The police
department applied for the grant. Dewberry was interviewed and they have been given $16,000 to
proceed with Dewberry. He shared that two of their members live in Washington. Alderperson
Adams clarified that the $580,000 can be used for the building. Alderperson Stevens asked if
Chief McCoy would send out the link to the handout.

E. Possible Ground-mount Solar Array Amendment Discussion Follow-up — Mr. Oliphant shared
that this is a follow-up discussion and they are focusing on:
1. The allowance of a ground mount to have a minimum setback of 50 feet and a neighbor would
need permission from the adjacent property owner if it is less. He explained that this has the
potential to cause issues with neighbors.
2. Setting a possible minimum lot size. He noted the average lot size in the city is just shy of .5
acres and with more than 50% of lots being .25 acres or less. Mr. Oliphant shared that the only
place he found that has this rule is Germantown Hills.
3. Allowing only roof mount systems. Staff would stay clear of this to avoid the subjectivity.
Alderperson Stevens said Tazewell County regulations should be the same as ours. She suggested
regulations about glare and wondered if the property of an HOA wanted a solar array. She
referred to a tricky property on Cruger. Alderperson Martin shared that he is in favor of a small
panel in a yard but doesn’t like solar farms. Alderperson Martin and Mr. Oliphant discussed
regulating the maximum square footage. Alderperson Buter noted the minimum number of panels
and explained that the size allowed for a roof would be too tall for a yard. Alderperson Butler
thinks solar arrays may work for commercial applications but might not be conducive to
neighbors on a % acre lot. Alderperson Mclntyre agreed with Alderperson Butler and likes
focusing on commercial properties. Alderperson Blundy agreed with the commercial aspect. He
said he is not as concerned about the looks because people put up weird fences and sheds.
Alderperson Adams said he agrees with starting with commercial and % of an acre lots.
Alderperson Brownfield agreed with Alderperson Butler. Alderperson Smith is in favor or % of an
acre lots and worries if you go with bigger panels it won’t be attractive to neighbors. Mr. Oliphant
stated that he will look further into it and bring it back.

5. OTHER BUSINESS: Administrator Snider noted that the weekend had six inches of rain and we have
had a few requests for limb pick up. We are planning on responding to them as they call into City Hall
instead of broadcasting it. He noted that Ameren was having issues and said GFL was initially having
issues getting down streets but figured out a solution. Mr. Rittenhouse shared a few isolated
incidences where trees did damage. Alderperson Stevens asked for a Brewpub update. Mr. Oliphant
stated that they are under contract with a demolition company and hope to start by the end of the
month.

At 8:01, Alderperson Martin motioned to go into closed session; Alderperson McIntyre seconded for the purpose of:
5 ILCS 120/2(c) (2) Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or their
representatives, or deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more classes of employees.

8 Ayes: Adams, Blundy, Brownfield, Butler, Martin, McIntyre, Smith and Stevens

0 Nays:
Motion carried by roll call vote.

6. ADJOURNMENT: At8:44 p.m. Alderperson Adams moved and Alderperson Brownfield seconded
to adjourn. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

Vo £ (3o S

Valeri L. Brod, City Clerk




